Southeast Federal Center Request for Proposal

Amendment #3

July 23, 2003


Question 1:
With regard to the operating proforma, you state there would be a sale in year 11 [presumably, based on the capitalization of the 11th year net operating income].  To clarify, do you require a proforma with a projected sale at the beginning of year 11 (which is equivalent to the end of year 10) based on year 11 NOI; or a proforma with a projected sale at the end of year 11, and if so based on 11th year NOI or 12th year NOI (which is not called for)?

Answer 1:
We require a proforma with a projected sale at the beginning of Year 11 (equivalent to the end of Year 10).  

______________________________________________________________________

Question 2:
On page 23 of the RFP, under Section C - Land Lease, in the first paragraph there is a reference to "a series of Base Rent payments."  In the third delineated item after the third paragraph under Section C is the phrase "Annual Base Rent payments to GSA are to be specified by the Developer, for each phase based on full build out and all available revenues as contributions to the land value."  Does this language preclude Base Rent amounts being "phased in" during construction and initial stabilization periods, such that the Base Rent payments are lower at the beginning of construction of the particular phase and then increase as development of such phase progresses and stabilization thereof occurs?

Answer 2:
No, this language does not preclude Base Rent amounts being “phased in” during construction and initial stabilization periods. Developers are expected to provide a single payment amount for each phase. How the value is derived will be the responsibility of the developer, but assumptions for the payment must be discussed and explained in the RFP response. 

______________________________________________________________________

Question 3:
Also regarding Base Rent, does the GSA anticipate that there will be any other amounts in addition to Base Rent that the Developer will be required to pay to the GSA (or any other party) under the Land Lease Agreement in the nature of additional rent, such as real estate taxes, payments in lieu of taxes (PILOTS) or similar items?

Answer 3:
Yes, GSA anticipates that in addition to Base Rent, the Developer will be required to pay other amounts to the GSA (or any other party) under the Land Lease Agreement. These additional amounts include additional paymentssuch as real estate taxes, PILOT payments and other items (such as deferred participation at Land Lease transfer or project refinance as stated in the RFP).

______________________________________________________________________

Question 4:
In light of the fact that, pursuant to Amendment #1 to the RFP effective April 5, 2003, the assumed Land Sale Agreement execution date is July 1, 2004, and the various Phase start dates are July 1 of the applicable years, can Developer assume that the "Start Date" listed on page 35 is July 1, 2004, and that the Pro Formas must be based upon a fiscal year analysis beginning on July 1 of each year rather than on a calendar year analysis?

Answer 4:
Yes, the start date listed on page 25 of the RFP is July 1, 2004, and the Pro Formas must be based on a fiscal year analysis starting July 1, 2004. 

______________________________________________________________________

Question 5:
The RFP stipulates the maximum size of drawings, but not the submission itself.  Does GSA have a requirement or preference for the specific dimensions of the submission booklet and/or whether it is presented in portrait or landscape format?  

Answer 5:
Yes, GSA's requirement is that the specific dimensions of the submission booklet must not exceed 11”x17”, and the booklet must be presented in landscape format.

______________________________________________________________________

Question 6:
Could you please provide a status report on the Draft EIS that is underway. Does GSA have an anticipated date for the public release of the Draft EIS? 

Answer 6:
GSA is currently preparing an EIS. It is anticipated that the Draft EIS will be released to the public at the end of September 2003. To assist in preparing RFP responses, GSA will be providing developers in mid-August a summary matrix and Chapter 3: Affected Environment. The summary matrix presents the environmental impacts of the alternatives being studied in comparative form. GSA anticipates sending developers an early copy of the Draft EIS early September to help in the preparation of RFP responses. Below is the schedule for the Draft EIS: 

	Task
	Due Date

	Summary Matrix & Chapter 3: Affected Environment for developers
	Mid-August 

	Early draft copy of the DEIS for developers
	Early September 

	Anticipated Public Release Date of Draft EIS
	 End of September 


______________________________________________________________________

Question 7:
Appendix I of the RFP – Legal Regulatory Requirements and Approvals – indicates that GSA has “satisfied its obligations under Section 106 of the MHPA, as amended.  Could GSA provide additional information as to what it did to comply with Section 106?  Are there documents related to that compliance?
Answer 7:
In 1992,GSA satisfied its obligations under Section 106 after consultation with the DC State Historic Preservation Office and the Advisory Council on Historic Preservation with regards to the 1992 master plan.  The development of the SEFC site is a new undertaking because it will be a mixture of residential, office and retail uses and thus will not be in compliance with the 1992 master plan.  Additional efforts by GSA and the preferred developer will be necessary for compliance with Section 106.  

The Section 106 process will be conducted in conjunction with the requirements of the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969.  GSA has already begun Section 106 consultations with the DC State Historic Preservation Office and the Advisory Council on Historic Preservation, and will involve other consulting parties in the Section 106 process.  Further information regarding GSA's efforts to comply with Section 106 will be available in the Draft Environmental Impact Statement.  

Information documenting GSA's compliance with Section 106 in 1992 and reflecting the final position of GSA and the Advisory Council in that process will be available shortly on GSA's SEFC web page.

______________________________________________________________________

Question 8:
Extending the Legacy: Planning America’s Capital for the 21st Century – Page 7 of the RFP suggests that this document can be found at the SEFC web site, but I was unable to locate it.  

Answer 8:
GSA has added a "Related Link" to the SEFC page and the link goes directly to the NCPC html page which has the publication titled "Extending the Legacy: Planning America's Capital for the 21st Century".

______________________________________________________________________

Question 9:
Civil Surveys - Page 17 of the RFP indicates that two civil surveys have been completed, the 1995 Curry Survey and the 2002 A. Morton Thomas Survey.  The RFP suggests the surveys can be found at the SEFC web site, but I was unable to locate them. The web site has a document available for downloading called Description of Current Conditions/IM/SS Report.   The table of contents references numerous tables, figures and appendices, which do no appear to be provided along with the narrative on the web site.  Could you please make these tables, figures and appendices available? 

Answer 9:
Zip files containing the 1995 Curry Survey and Associates site survey files and the RCRA Description of Current Conditions table and figures files are on the URS external ftp website.  The URS external ftp website address is:
 tp://ftpuser@external.ftp.urscorp.com/Gaithersburg/Southeast Federal/. The login and password are "ftpuser". Please note that the files are in unprotected format. 

 Question 10:
    Archaeological reports – Page 18 of the RFP indicates that there are two reports that were developed by GSA which provide the results of a Phase 1 and Phase II archaeological investigations on the site.  The RFP suggests that the developers may review the documents.  May we obtain copies?
Answer 10:
Copies of Phase I & II Archaeological Investigations at SEFC by Parsons Engineering Science, Inc. July 1995 can be picked up at GSA, Public Buildings Service, National Capital Region at 7th & D Street, SW Room 2002, Washington, DC 20407 during business hours from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday.  Arrangements can be coordinated with Pat Daniels at 202-205-5857 or by electronic mail at pat.daniels@gsa.gov.

______________________________________________________________________
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